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Dear Attorney McDaniel

Enclosed please find two copies of a Notice of Lawsuit and Request f-or Waiver of Service of
Summons and a Waiver of Service of Summons, along with a copy of the Complaint, which has

been filed against the City of Manitowoc, Lee H. Kummer and Kathleen McDaniel, in their
respective official capacities, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Wisconsin.

Pursuant to F.R.C.P. 4(cl), I would appreciate it if you could sign and date the enclosed Notice of
Lawsuit and Request for Waiver of Service of Summons and the Waiver of Service of Summons on

behalf of the City and return one copy of each to me for filing with the coutt.

Thank you.

Very truly yours,

von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c

Alan Marcuvitz

Enclosures

29903239 1.DOCX

/s/

vonbriesen.com 4ll East Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 1000 Milwauhee, Wisconsin 53202-M09 Phone 4L4-276-1I22 Fax 414-276-6281



AO 398 (Rev.0l/09) Notice of a Lawsuit and Request to Waive Servrce of a Summons

UNrugo SrarBs DTSTRICT CoURT
for the

Easterr District of Wisconsin

Manitowoc Asset lmprovement, LLC
Plaintiff

Civil ActionNo. 1:18-cv-00035-WCG
City of Manitowoc, et al.

Defendant

NOTICE OF A LAWSUIT AND REQUEST TO WAIVE SERVICE OF'A SUMMONS

To: City of Manitowoc
(Name ofthe defendant or - ifthe defendant ís a corporation, partnership, or association - an ofrcer or agent authorized to receive service)

Why are you getting this?

A lawsuit has been filed against you, or the entity you represent, in this court under the number shown above.
A copy of the complaint is attached.

This is not a summons, or an official notice from the court. It is a request that, to avoid expenses, you waive formal
service of a summons by signing and returning the enclosed waiver. To avoid these expenses, you must return the signed
waiver within 30 days (give at least 30 days, or at least 60 days if the defendant is outside any judicíal district of the United States)

from the date shown below, which is the date this notice was sent. Two copies of the waiver form are enclosed, along with
a stamped, self-addressed envelope or other prepaid means for returning one copy. You may keep the other copy.

What happens next?

If you return the signed waiver, I will file it with the court. The action will then proceed as if you had been served
on the date the waiver is filed, but no summons will be served on you and you will have 60 days from the date this notice
is sent (see the date below) to answer the complaint (or 90 days if this notice is sent to you outside any judicial district of
the United States).

Ifyou do not return the signed waiver within the time indicated, I will anange to have the summons and complaint
served on you. And I will ask the court to require you, or the entity you represent, to pay the expenses of making service.

Please read the enclosed statement about the duty to avoid unnecessary expenses.

I certify that this request is being sent to you on the date below.

Date 01 18 s/ Alan Marcuvitz
Signature of the attorney or unrepresented party

Alan Marcuvitz
Printed name

von Briesen & Roper, s.c.
4118. Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 1000

Milwaukee, Wl 53202
Address

E-mail address

Ø14\ 287-1401

)
)
)
)
)

ama

Telephone number

.com



AO 399 (01i09) \ilaiver of the Service of Summons

UNTrgn STATBS DTSTruCT CoURT
for the

Eastem District of Wisconsin

Manitowoc Asset lmprovement, LLC
Plaintiff

v.
City of Mânitowoc, et al.

Civil Action No. 1:18-cv-00035-WCG

Defendant

WAIVER OF THE SERVICE OF SITMMONS

s/ Alan Marcuvitz
(Name of the plaintiff's attorney or ttnrepresented plainti/J)

I have received your request to waive service of a summons in this action along with a copy of the complaint,
two copiçs of this waiver form, and a prepaid means of retuming one signed copy of the form to you.

l, or the entity I represent, agree to save the expense of serving a summons and complaint in this case.

I understand that l, or the entity I represent, will keep all defenses or objections to the lawsuit, the court's
jurisdiction, and the venue of the action, but that I waive any objections to the absence of a summons or of service.

I also understand that I, or the entity I represent, must file and serve an answer or a motion under Rule 12 within
60 days from , the date when this request was sent (or 90 days if it was sent outside the
United States). If I fail to do so, a default judgment will be entered against me or the entity I represent.

Date 01t09t2018
Signature of the attorney or unrepresented party

City of Manitowoc
Printed name of party waiving servíce of sttmmons Printed name

Address

E-mail address

Telephone number

Duty to Avoid Unnecessary Expenses of Sewing a Summons

Rule 4 ofthe Federal Rules ofCivil Procedure requires certain defendants to cooperate in saving unnecessary expenses ofserving a summons
and complaint. A defendant who is located in the United States and who fails to retum a signed waiver of service requested by a plaintiff located in
the United States will be required to pay the expenses ofservice, unless the defendant shows good cause for the failure.

"Good cause" does nol include a beliefthat the lawsuit is groundless, or that it has been brought in an improper venue, or that the court has
no jurisdiction over this matter or over the defendant or the defendant's property.

Ifthe waiver is signed and returned, you can still make these and all olher defenses and objections, but you cannot objectto the absence of
a summons or of service-

If you waive service, then you must, within the time specifìed on the waiver form, serve an answer or a motion under Rule l2 on the plaintiff
and file a copy with the court. By signing and returning the waiver form, you are allowed more time to respond than if a summons had been served.

)
)
)
)
)

To:



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

MANITOWOC ASSET IMPROVEMENT, LLC, 
5601 West North Avenue 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53208, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 
v.        Case No.:  ___________________ 
 
CITY OF MANITOWOC, 
900 Quay Street 
Manitowoc, WI 54220, 
 
LEE H. KUMMER, in his official  
capacity as City of Manitowoc Alderperson, 
900 Quay Street 
Manitowoc, Wisconsin 54220, 
 
and  
 
KATHLEEN M. MCDANIEL, in her official  
capacity as City of Manitowoc City Attorney, 
900 Quay Street 
Manitowoc, Wisconsin 54220, 
 
  Defendants. 
 
              

COMPLAINT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

NOW COMES the above named Plaintiff, MANITOWOC ASSET IMPROVEMENT, LLC 

(“MAI”), by its attorneys, von Briesen & Roper, s.c., as and for claims against the above named 

Defendants, the CITY OF MANITOWOC, LEE H. KUMMER and KATHLEEN MCDANIEL, alleges and 

shows the Court as follows: 
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NATURE OF ACTION 

1. This is a civil action for declaratory relief, injunctive relief and damages pursuant 

to 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983 and 1988, the Fair Housing Act, 42. U.S.C. § 3601, et seq., the Fifth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution and for declaratory and injunctive relief 

pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 806.04 and  813.01, et seq.  

2. Defendants, the City of Manitowoc, Lee H. Kummer and Kathleen McDaniel, 

willfully, intentionally, with malice and forethought: have deprived, and/or threatened to deprive, 

Plaintiff of its property interests without due process of law; are proceeding to take property 

interests without just compensation; and, are denying Plaintiff equal protection of the laws, all by 

conspiring in a calculated campaign to target the below defined Property and raze the Riverview 

Apartments in an attempt to remove predominately low income tenants from an otherwise 

owner-occupied middle-class neighborhood of the City. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over this action, pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1331, because the allegations contained in this Complaint are federal questions and 

involve alleged violations of the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983 and 1988, and the Fifth and 

Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution. 

4. This Court also has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1343 because this action 

seeks to redress the deprivation of rights, caused by a person(s) acting under color of law. 

5. This Court has supplemental  jurisdiction over the state law claims, pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. § 1367, because “[i]n any civil action of which the district courts have original 

jurisdiction, the district courts shall have supplemental jurisdiction over all other claims that are 
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so related to the claims in the action within such original jurisdiction that they form part of the 

same case or controversy.” 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a). 

6. This Court has jurisdiction to grant declaratory relief, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 

2201 and 2202. 

7. This Court has jurisdiction to grant injunctive relief, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 

2283, 2284 and Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

8. The Eastern District of Wisconsin is the appropriate venue for this action, 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)(1) and (2), because Plaintiff and all Defendants reside in the 

Eastern District of Wisconsin and it is the District in which the events giving rise to the claims 

occurred. 

PARTIES 

9. Plaintiff, Manitowoc Asset Improvement, LLC (“MAI”), is a Wisconsin limited 

liability company with is principal office located at 5601 West North Avenue, Milwaukee, 

Wisconsin 53208. 
10. The City of Manitowoc (the “City”), is a municipal corporation and body politic 

duly organized in the State of Wisconsin with its principal offices located at 900 Quay Street, 

Manitowoc, WI 54220. 

11. Defendant, Lee H. Kummer (“Kummer”), is a resident of the State of Wisconsin 

residing at 3300 Lindbergh Drive in the City of Manitowoc and is, and was at all times relevant 

to this matter, the City of Manitowoc Alderperson for the 5th Aldermanic District of the City. 

12. Defendant, Kathleen M. McDaniel (“McDaniel”), is a resident of the State of 

Wisconsin residing at 2525 Kellner Street in the City of Manitowoc and is, and was at all times 

relevant to this matter, the City of Manitowoc City Attorney. 

Case 1:18-cv-00035-WCG   Filed 01/08/18   Page 3 of 12   Document 1



4 
 

BACKGROUND 

13. Within the City’s municipal boundaries is property located at 314 and 316 

Riverview Drive, identified in the City’s tax records as Tax Parcel No. 052-819-303-020-00, and 

also located in the City’s 5th Aldermanic District (hereinafter, the “Property”). 

14. Jenruss, LLC (“Jenruss”) currently owns the Property, which is improved with 

two separate two-story apartment buildings containing a total of 32 low income residential rental 

units, known as the “Riverview Apartments.” 

15. The improvements component of the Property have been assessed by the City in 

the amount of $923,200 in each of the last three tax years.  

16. The tenants of the Riverview Apartments are predominately living in poverty and 

many of the tenants, both historically and currently, are either on social security or other 

disability aids because of a handicap.   

17. The current monthly rental rates at the Riverview Apartments range from $435 to 

$525, per unit. 

18. In April 2016, Kummer was elected to the City’s Common Council representing 

the 5th District, with his term beginning April 19, 2016. 

19. Kummer currently owns and resides at a residence located approximately 2,000 

feet from the Riverview Apartments. 

ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS 

20. In May of 2016, under the direction of Kummer and McDaniel, the City began 

targeting the Riverview Apartments, with the intent of finding any and all possible violations of 

its municipal code, and issuing an excessive amount of citations and fees based thereon. 
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21. Attached as Exhibit A is a Manitowoc Municipal Court Citation History for the 

Riverview Apartments, showing the systematic targeting of the low income housing complex.    

22. On April 30, 2017 MAI leased the Property from Jenruss under a Master-Lease 

Agreement (the “Lease”), a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference as Exhibit B.  

23. The Lease requires MAI to assume the responsibilities of rehabilitation, 

improvement, management, operation, maintenance, leasing and all other duties with reference 

to the Property, with the goal of achieving an improved physical environment, improved 

occupancy rate and bringing the Riverview Apartments into compliance with all applicable codes 

and regulations. 

24. The Lease provides that Jenruss shall deposit the initial amount of $100,000 into 

an account to be managed by MAI to fund the performance of MAI’s rehabilitation and 

improvement obligations under the Lease (the “Deposit”). 

25. Jenruss made the required Deposit shortly after the April 30th 2017 execution of 

the Lease. 

26. MAI hired Ogden & Company (“Ogden”), an experienced multi-family 

residential management company, to manage the Riverview Apartments.  

27. On May 4, 2017 the City issued to Jenruss an “Order to Raze or Repair” (the 

“Raze or Repair Order”), pursuant to Wis. Stat. §66.0413, which it recorded on May 5, 2017 and 

served on Jenruss on May 8, 2017.  City also served the Raze or Repair Order on MAI on May 

11, 2017.  A true and correct copy of the Raze or Repair Order is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as Exhibit C.  
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28. The Raze and Repair Order asserted that the Riverview Apartments were 

“dilapidated and out of repair and [were] consequently, dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or 

otherwise unfit for human habitation.” 

29. The Raze or Repair Order required the Riverview Apartments to be “significantly 

repaired” or, if not, razed within 100 days. 

30. Immediately following receipt of the Raze or Repair Order, MAI informed the 

City of its intent to repair and rehabilitate the Riverview Apartments, but indicated that the 

planned repairs would require more than 100 days. 

31. The City refused to provide an appropriate extension to allow sufficient repairs to 

be made. 

32. Under the imminent threat of the City razing the Riverview Apartments and 

displacing its tenants, MAI filed a Verified Complaint against the City on May 23, 2017, 

pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413(1)(h), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit D (the “Circuit Court Case”), requesting an injunction from the Manitowoc County 

Circuit Court, prohibiting the City from razing the Riverview Apartments upon the expiration of 

the 100-day period in the Raze Order and requesting adequate time to complete the necessary 

repairs.   

33. In June  2017, a fire damaged the building at 314 Riverview Drive and the entire 

building has since been unoccupied, pending receipt of insurance funds needed for necessary 

repairs.  

34. On August 3, 2017, immediately prior to the hearing in Manitowoc Circuit Court 

on MAI’s requested injunction, MAI, Jenruss and the City entered into an agreement to allow the 

repair and rehabilitation of the Riverview Apartments (the “Agreement”). 
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35. The Agreement called for: Jenruss to pay $65,000 of the $128,134 of citations 

issued by the City as depicted in Exhibit A; MAI to restore and rehabilitate the Riverview 

Apartments to a condition that meets reasonable standards for occupancy on or before December 

31, 2017, with an extension until March 30, 2018 for good cause shown; and, for the City to hold 

the Raze or Repair Order in abeyance until these conditions were met.  

36. Upon being informed of the Agreement, Kummer acted to prevent, undermine 

and/or materially alter the Agreement to ensure that the City would raze the Riverview 

Apartments.  

37. MAI, the City and Jenruss formalized the Agreement, along with other items 

added by the City, in a Stipulated Disposition of the Circuit Court Case, a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit E (the “Stipulated Dismissal”). 

38. In the approximate three month period following the Stipulated Disposition 

through December 2017, MAI has worked diligently to repair and rehabilitate the Riverview 

Apartments, spending approximately $70,000 on the rehabilitation and improvement of the 

building at 316 Riverview Drive and renovating 13 of the 16 units. 

39. The building at 316 Riverview Drive is currently safe, sanitary, fit for human 

habitation and the City continues to allow occupancy.    

40. During the same period of rehabilitation and improvement of the building at 316 

Riverview Drive, numerous inspections were done by City inspectors.  All identified hazards 

were corrected and required actions were taken by MAI and/or Ogden, with no outstanding 

requirements as of December, 2017. 

41. During the period of rehabilitation and improvement of the building at 316 

Riverview Drive, despite consistent efforts, Jenruss was unable to obtain insurance proceeds 
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needed to repair the building at 314 Riverview Drive, during which period the building was, and 

remains, both unoccupied and secure.  

42. Also during December 2017, because of the improvement of the Property and 

positive feedback from City inspectors, MAI entered into discussions with Jenruss to purchase 

the Riverview Apartments and continue the improvement of both buildings.  

43. By letter dated December 20, 2017, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit F (the “December 20, 2017 Letter”), MAI, through its attorneys, wrote to McDaniel 

regarding the improvement and rehabilitation of the Riverview Apartments. 

44. In the December 20, 2017 Letter MAI explained that the building at 316 

Riverview Drive has been restored to a “code compliant, safe and sanitary condition” (defined by 

the Stipulated Disposition as meeting the reasonable requirements for occupancy), but that, 

because of delays caused by the insurance company and outside the control of MAI, additional 

time was needed to repair the building at 314 Riverview Drive after the June 2017 fire.  

45. The December 20, 2017 Letter further requested an extension for work on the 

building at 314 Riverview Drive until the Extended Repair Deadline under the Stipulated 

Disposition, as required for delays outside the control of MAI. 

46. On Friday, December 28, 2017 Kummer and McDaniel brought City inspectors to 

the Riverview Apartments for an inspection under their supervision.  

47. On the same day as the inspection (supervised by Kummer and McDaniel) was 

conducted, McDaniel sent an email to MAI, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit G, in which she alleged several issues with the Riverview Apartments, none of which 

were previously identified by the City for action following numerous other inspections by the 

City, and asserted that the City will have the Riverview Apartments razed. 

Case 1:18-cv-00035-WCG   Filed 01/08/18   Page 8 of 12   Document 1



9 
 

48. On January 3, 2018, MAI entered into a contract for the purchase of the 

Riverview Apartments, contingent upon the City allowing the continued repair and rehabilitation 

of the Property, a copy of which attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit H. 

49. On January 4, 2018, MAI, through its counsel, verbally informed McDaniel of the 

pending sale and offered to discuss continuing work to repair and rehabilitate the Riverview 

Apartments, but McDaniel stated the City was not interested in discussing anything other than 

razing the Apartments. 

50. Defendants have acted under the color of law and conspired in a calculated 

campaign to target the Riverview Apartments and ultimately have the buildings razed, not 

because the buildings are dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human habitation, 

but in an attempt to remove the predominately low income tenants from the otherwise owner-

occupied middle-class neighborhood of the City.  

First Claim–Violation of Civil Rights 
(Against all Defendants) 

51. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges paragraphs 1-50 of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein.  

52. Title 42 U.S.C. § 1983 creates a cause of action against “[e]very person who, 

under color of any statute, ordinance, regulation, custom, or usage, of any State or Territory . . .  

subjects, or causes to be subjected, any citizen of the United States or other person within the 

jurisdiction thereof to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the 

Constitution and laws . . .” 

53. The City, Kummer and McDaniel are each considered a “person” within the 

meaning on 42 U.S.C. § 1983. 42 U.S.C. § 2000e(a).  
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54. The City, its employees and agents, Kummer and McDaniel acted under the color 

of law, custom, or usage, within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 1983 with respect to their above 

mentioned actions related to Plaintiff and the Riverview Apartments. 

55. Defendants’ actions and calculated campaign described above, willfully, 

intentionally, with malice and forethought violated Plaintiffs civil rights under the Fifth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution by depriving, and/or threatening to deprive, 

Plaintiff of its property interests without due process of law, taking property without just 

compensation and denying Plaintiff equal protection of the laws in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.   

Second Claim–Fair Housing Act 
(Against all Defendants) 

 
56. Plaintiff restates and re-alleges paragraphs 1-55 of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

57. Title 42 U.S.C. § 3617 makes it “unlawful to coerce, intimidate, threaten, or 

interfere with any person . . . on account of his having aided or encouraged any other person in 

the exercise or enjoyment of, any right granted by” the Fair Housing Act. 

58. MAI is considered a “person” for purposes of 42 U.S.C. § 3617. 42 U.S.C. § 

3602(d). 

59. Defendants’ actions and calculated campaign described above, willfully, 

intentionally, with malice and forethought violated 42 U.S.C. § 3617 by coercing, intimidating, 

threatening and interfering with Plaintiff’s work to aid and encourage the tenants of Riverview 

Apartments to exercise and/or enjoy their rights granted by the Fair Housing Act, 42. U.S.C. § 

3601, et seq. 
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Third Claim – Declaratory Judgment 
(Against the City) 

60. Plaintiff restates and re-alleges paragraphs 1-59 of this Complaint as if fully set 

forth herein. 

61. Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413(1)(b)1, even if a building is “dilapidated or out 

of repair and consequently dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human 

habitation” the City may only order the building razed if the building is “unreasonable to repair.” 

62. Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.0413(1)(c), a building is considered “unreasonable” to 

repair for purposes of a raise order if the cost of repairs would exceed 50 percent of the equalized 

assessed value of the building. 

63. The building at 316 Riverview Drive is currently safe, sanitary, fit for human 

habitation, the City continues to allow occupancy and the City cannot raze (or order the owner to 

raze) this building as a matter of law. 

64. The building at 314 Riverview Drive is out of repair and unoccupied because of a 

fire in June 2017, but the building can be reasonably repaired for significantly less than 50 

percent of its equalized value and, therefore the City cannot raze (or order the owner to raze) this 

building as a matter of law. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment against 

Defendants as follows: 

A. A jury trial; 

B. An order and judgment declaring that the City, Kummer and McDaniel deprived 

Plaintiff of its liberty and property interests without due process of law and just 

compensation and denied Plaintiff equal protection of the laws in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 

1983 and the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution; 
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C. An order and judgment declaring that the actions of the City, Kummer and 

McDaniel were done willfully, intentionally, with malice and forethought, or with 

reckless disregard for MAI’s federally protected rights; 

D. An order enjoining and prohibiting Defendants from razing the Riverview 

Apartments or requiring the owner to raze of the Riverview Apartments; 

E. An order and judgment enjoining and prohibiting Defendants from targeting the 

Riverview Apartments with excessive and unequal inspections, citations and fines; 

F. An order and judgment awarding damages and just compensation; 

G. An order and judgment awarding punitive damages; 

H. An order and judgment awarding litigation costs, attorneys’ fees and expert fees 

incurred by Plaintiff, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1988(b); 

I. An order and judgment retaining jurisdiction over this action to ensure full 

compliance with the Court’s orders; 

J. Such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate and just. 

 Dated this 8th day of January, 2018. 
 
 
       von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c.  
       Attorneys for Plaintiff 

       
 
       By:      /s/ Alan Marcuvitz 
        Alan Marcuvitz, SBN 1007942 
        Smitha Chintamaneni, SBN 1047047 
        Nicholas J. Boerke, SBN 1083217 
POST OFFICE ADDRESS 
von Briesen & Roper, s.c. 
411 E. Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 1000 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin  53202 
Tel:  (414) 287-140160 
Fax:  (414) 238-6432 
amarcuvitz@vonbriesen.com  
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Attorney Marcuvitz,

The City cannot agree to your request. I am so disappointed that our taxpayers have been let down by this property not
being repaired to the extent we were promised.

I had the opportunity to tour the property today along with the majority of our inspectors and the alderperson for the
district. I am extremely disappointed in the property condition. I can report to you that it is not code compliant, safe, or
sanitary. I am waiting on the report from our inspectors, who left the property shortly before 12 today. The stipulation
we all agreed to contained the following provisions:

1. Jenruss to enter a no contest plea. Complete.
2. Jenruss to pay $65,565 by December 31, 2017. Incomplete at this time. Payments have been received, but

the last payment of $11,565 is outstanding. I am hopeful that the proverbial check is in the mail.
3. MAI to make all repairs necessary to bring both buildings at Riverview Apartments to a code compliant,

safe, and sanitary standard, defined as that which meets the City’s reasonable requirements for issuance
of occupancy permits.Woefully incomplete. The fire damaged building at 314 Riverview Drive is nowhere
near prepared for occupancy , and isn’t even kept to a minimum standard of weathertight and
rodentproof. The building at 316 Riverview Drive is literally sinking. You can see the north end of the
building falling down due to cracks in the foundation, which have not been addressed and have worsened
since the raze order was issued. The windows in this building don’t lock and in fact, don’t shut. There is not
hot water available to all the units. When testing a sink today, minor flooding occurred due to inadequate
plumbing. Beams were removed that may have been structural supports. You can see daylight from the
basement – as in, you can see outside. There is visible water damage to the foundation. There is garbage
stored in the basement. Exhaust fans don’t work in many of the units. The floors are not level in a number of
the units. In the northernmost units, the floors are visibly not level. There are five leased units, despite the
City not being asked to issue occupancy permits pursuant to the stipulation. There are not functional exit
lights. These are the violations that I personally observed. I can only imagine the additional list you will be
receiving from our state certified inspectors. The employees have done minor cosmetic improvements on a
building that needed significant structural repairs. I am quite surprised that you are asking for an extension
given that 316 is in such poor condition, yet you consider it compliant.

4. A determination as to whether 314 Riverview will be repaired or razed by November 1, 2017. The first
communication we had on this issue was your email asking for an extension, over a month past the
deadline. Your request was not substantiated by any insurance communication. Again, this building is not
even weather and watertight.

5. MAI consents to periodic inspections. Complete.
6. MAI will reasonably secure both buildings. Partially complete, issues remain with safe latching of the exit

doors.
7. MAI will enter into a nuisance abatement plan. The Police Department informs me that this plan has been

entered into, but has not been fully complied with.
8. MAI will enter into written leases with all tenants. I am told these leases exist for the 5 leased units. I do

not believe the City has received them all, and also have reason to believe there are persons residing at the
apartment that are not listed on a written lease.
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9. The parties agree the raze order be held until the repair deadline or extended repair deadline has passed.
The repair deadline passes Sunday. I don’t think you are going to be able to fix the foundation issues on 316
by Sunday, but perhaps Ogden can work the miracles we were promised.

At this point, does your client wish to raze the buildings at their expense, or have the City go forward and get a court
order? Please let me know your wishes by Friday, January 5, 2018. In the event that we will need a court date, I have
called Judge Bendix’s judicial assistant and left a message asking for a date to schedule a hearing. I will be providing you
with our inspector’s report and photos once I have received them.

I look forward to working with you to demolish the structures and hope it won’t be necessary to show Judge Bendix the
way MAI failed to act in good faith. Minor cosmetic improvements cannot mask the numerous structural flaws at this
property that remain unaddressed.

Kathleen M. McDaniel
Manitowoc City Attorney
900 Quay Street, Manitowoc, WI 54220
(920) 686 6990 | kmcdaniel@manitowoc.org

From: Nicholas J. Boerke [mailto:nboerke@vonbriesen.com] On Behalf Of Alan H. Marcuvitz 
Sent: Wednesday, December 20, 2017 3:06 PM 
To: Kathleen McDaniel; Elizabeth Majerus 
Cc: Jerilyn M. Dietz (dietz@mclawfirmllp.com); Nicholas J. Boerke 
Subject: Manitowoc Asset Improvement LLC - 314 and 316 Riverview Drive - Request for Extension of Repair Deadline 
Importance: High 

Dear City Attorney Kathleen McDaniel,

We are writing on behalf of, and as attorneys for, Manitowoc Asset Improvement LLC (MAI) in relation to 314 and 316
Riverview Drive in the City of Manitowoc and the Stipulated Disposition filed with the Manitowoc Circuit Court on
September 15, 2017.

As I hope you are aware, it is our understanding that Mr. Scott Dietz of Jenruss, LLC has complied with all of his
obligations under the Stipulated Disposition including timely payments required thereunder. In addition, MAI, along with
the assistance of Ogden Management and onsite manager David Orosco, has made significant progress in restoring and
rehabilitating the property and the City has indicated it is pleased with the progress and changes.

It is also our understanding that the building at 316 Riverview Drive has been restored to a code compliant, safe and
sanitary condition and that work continues to further improve the building and its tenancy. However, despite significant
efforts to obtain insurance funds and proceed with restoring the building at 314 Riverview Drive to a code compliant,
safe and sanitary condition, MAI has been unable to do so by the original Repair Deadline of December 31, 2017. The
delay in MAI’s ability to restore this building is a direct result of an insurance company not releasing funds related to a
recent fire. Despite continued efforts by MAI and others, the insurance company’s actions/inactions and resulting
delays are not within the control of MAI. Therefore, pursuant to paragraph 3 of the Stipulated Disposition, MAI hereby
requests an extension of the Repair Deadline for the building at 314 Riverview Drive until the Extended Repair
Deadline of March 30, 2018. MAI understands that no further extensions are allowed under the Stipulated
Disposition and it plans to expeditiously restore the building at 314 Riverview Drive as soon as insurance funds are
released.

Please also see the attached letter, which is also being sent via U.S. Mail, and please inform me or Alan if you have any
questions or concerns.
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Thanks for your cooperation,

Alan

This message (including attachments) is privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it without further distribution and reply to 
the sender that you have received the message in error.
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